






Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through November

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 160,144.00 160,144.00 98,808.85 53,687.29 7,647.86 Teachers Salaries

1120 4,833.00 4,833.00 4,308.00 525.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 58,392.00 58,392.00 40,874.40 17,517.60 .00 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 65,192.00 65,192.00 52,965.64 34,196.23 21,969.87-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 288,561.00 288,561.00 192,648.89 109,709.12 13,797.01-

2100 107,184.00 107,184.00 60,187.50 30,513.54 16,482.96 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 13,238.00 13,238.00 8,383.34 5,673.04 818.38-Classified Support Salaries

2300 90,812.00 90,812.00 52,447.50 37,642.50 722.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 113,140.00 113,140.00 69,025.11 48,107.19 3,992.30-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 6,144.00 6,144.00 1,676.00 4,468.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 330,518.00 330,518.00 190,043.45 123,612.27 16,862.28 

3101 22,319.00 22,319.00 15,893.43 8,710.40 2,284.83-STRS Certificated Positions

3102 233.24 190.39 423.63-STRS Classified Positions

3201 89.02 89.02-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 52,074.00 52,074.00 27,065.36 18,220.05 6,788.59 PERS Classified Positions

3301 1,118.00 1,118.00 55.06 1,062.94 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,869.00 19,869.00 11,226.59 7,308.65 1,333.76 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,482.00 4,482.00 2,725.73 1,645.31 110.96 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,653.00 4,653.00 2,664.56 1,744.79 243.65 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 70,692.00 70,692.00 52,508.96 24,894.80 6,711.76-Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 84,530.00 84,530.00 47,083.99 30,864.27 6,581.74 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 1,358.00 1,358.00 96.39 58.14 1,203.47 SUI Certificated

3502 165.00 165.00 95.10 61.09 8.81 SUI Classified

3601 8,916.00 8,916.00 5,596.92 3,185.62 133.46 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 10,239.00 10,239.00 5,471.62 3,582.85 1,184.53 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3701 27,730.00 27,730.00 27,730.00 OPEB, Allocated Certificated

3901 6,479.22 6,479.22-Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 308,145.00 308,145.00 170,661.89 107,089.66 30,393.45 

4200 6,613.00 6,613.00 1,297.20 5,315.80 Library and Reference Material

4300 18,975.00 18,975.00 825.30 4,549.19 13,600.51 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 1,300.00 236.49 287.78 775.73 Custodial Supplies

4330 2,000.00 2,000.00 572.37 1,427.63 Office Supplies

4340 206.89- 206.89 COUNTY OFFICE MOVING EXP

4350 6,500.00 6,500.00 2,372.99 314.51 3,812.50 Vehicle Upkeep

Total for Object 4000 35,388.00 35,388.00 4,731.98 5,516.96 25,139.06 

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 5, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Nov 27 2013 

10:54AM

001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4340
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through November

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

5100 33,544.00 33,544.00 16,100.00 17,700.00 256.00-Subagreements for Services

5200 23,985.00 23,985.00 6,012.42 6,747.19 11,225.39 Travel and Conference

5300 17,470.00 17,470.00 30,000.00 9,601.00 22,131.00-Dues and Membership

5400 10,200.00 10,200.00 10,149.00 51.00 Insurance

5500 8,000.00 8,000.00 1,408.12 2,368.53 4,223.35 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,700.00 2,700.00 264.82 304.97 2,130.21 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 9,000.00 9,000.00 1,200.00 8,000.00 200.00-Professional Consulting

5801 29,205.00 29,205.00 29,205.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 200.00 40.00- 340.00 Legal Publications

5805 593.00 593.00 270.00 101.00 222.00 Personnel Expense

5806 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 702.08 497.92 300.00 Other Services & Fees

5810 195,310.00 195,310.00 67,031.84 63,929.76 64,348.40 Contracted Services

5899 3,648.69 20,209.75 23,858.44-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 2,000.00 2,000.00 188.92 1,811.08 Communications

Total for Object 5000 336,007.00 336,007.00 126,837.97 139,758.04 69,410.99 

7110 143,407.00 143,407.00 143,442.44 35.44-County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 213,187.00 213,187.00 13,877.28 3,148.68 196,161.04 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 356,594.00 356,594.00 157,319.72 3,148.68 196,125.60 

1,655,213.00 1,655,213.00 842,243.90 488,834.73 324,134.37 Total for Expense accounts

324,134.37 1,655,213.00 1,655,213.00 842,243.90 488,834.73 Total for Org 001, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 5, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Nov 27 2013 

10:54AM

001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64216&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310






SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

November 12, 2013 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118 

This meeting was videoconferenced to Downieville School, Downieville, CA. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President ALLEN WRIGHT called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 

 

B. ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT:  Mr. Allen Wright, President 

   Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President  

   Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk 

   Mr. Tim Driscoll, Member 

   Mr. Mike Moore, Member 

 

 ABSENT:   None     

 

 VACANT:   None 

     

C. FLAG SALUTE 

 

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

 MSCU/MOORE/HALL 

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

F. CLOSED SESSION 

 

The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Merrill M. Grant and Business Manager Rose Asquith moved 

into Closed Session to discuss the preceding item. 

 

1. Conference with Labor Negotiators per Government Code §54957.6 

  Agency Negotiator for the Board:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent  

  Employee Organizations:  Represented Employees: SPTA and Classified;  

               Unrepresented Employees: Confidential and Management 

 

G. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

MSCU/MOORE/HALL 

 

 REPORT OUT – Direction was given to the Superintendent regarding Negotiations. 

 

 ADJOURN AND BREAK  

 

6 pm - RECONVENE  

 

H.  PRESENTATION 

 

1. Presentation from the Loyalton Elementary School 6
th
 Grade Class, Patrick Doyle, Teacher 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 12, 2013 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

I.         INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS  

 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

 

a. Quarterly Meeting of the California County Superintendents Educational Services 

Association (CCSESA) – Updates and review regarding the Local Control Accountability 

Plan (LCAP), Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), Smarter-Balanced Assessment, 

Common Core Standards, and Secure Rural Schools (SRS). The Timber Coalition had a 

breakout session of all counties who benefit from this funding.  The Helium Bill, 

provided to keep us afloat, was provided to the District on September 30.   

b. Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) – This new funding formula (plan) benefits 

students by supporting itinerant groups moving forward.  All single district County 

Offices of Education must submit the plan (application) to another County Office of 

Education for approval. 

c. Ten contract days were added for Barbara Jaquez to maintain and enhance the County/District 

website in order to keep it more informative on a daily basis.  

 

2. Business Report 

 a.  Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/13 to 10/31/13 

 

3. Staff Report 

 

4. SPTA Report 

 

5. Board Member’s Report 

 

 WRIGHT: Attended the District Advisory Committee 

 

6. Public Comment 

 

President WRIGHT opened the meeting for public comment at 6:18 pm.    

Mr. Ben Roberti, LHS student teacher, introduced himself. 

There was no comment from the teleconferenced location. 

President WRIGHT closed the meeting for public comment at 6:22 pm. 

 

J.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

 The following items were included in the consent calendar: 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held October 8, 2013 

2. Approval of bill warrants for month of October 2013   

 MSCU/HALL/DRISCOLL 

  

K.  ACTION ITEMS 

 

1.  OLD BUSINESS 

 

1314-053 Administrative Regulation 4161.2 (Certificated), Personal Leave, revision 

 

1314-054 Administrative Regulation 4261.2 (Classified), Personal Leave, revision 

 

1314-055 Administrative Regulation 4161.8, 4261.8, 4361.8, Family Care and Medical Leave, revision 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 12, 2013 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

 

 MOORE moved to approve Administrative Regulations 4161.2, 4261.2, 4161.8, 4261.8, 

4361.8, simultaneously.  

 HALL seconded.  Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

2.  NEW BUSINESS 

 

1314-056 Approval of Superintendent's Goals for 2013-14 

DRYDEN motioned to accept the Sierra County Office of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint 

Unified School District Goals for Areas of Emphasis for 2013/14 school year.  HALL 

seconded.  Motion Passed Unanimously.  

 

  BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

 

1314-057 Board Policy 5141.27, Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs, revision 

 

1314-058 Administrative Regulation 5141.27, Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs, revision 

 

DRYDEN motioned to Approve Item 1314-057 and 1314-058 simultaneously/HALL 

seconded.  Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

L.  ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on December 10, 2013, at Downieville School, Downieville, 

California, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm. 

 

Suggested Agenda Items 

A. Election of Officers 

B. Cafeteria Update 

C. Negotiations 

 

M.    ADJOURNMENT 

 

Adjourned at 6:31 pm. 

MSCU/HALL/DRISCOLL 

 

 

 

 

 __________________________   _______________________________  

 Patty Hall, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 11/01/2013 through 11/28/2013

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

ROSE ASQUITH 01-520011/13/201300013833 69.92 

01-5899 279.67 209.75 

MERRILL GRANT 01-520011/13/201300013834 461.36 

INLAND SUPPLY 01-432011/13/201300013835 156.17 

LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-550011/13/201300013836 212.91 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-510011/13/201300013837 2,528.00 

01-5810 3,200.00 672.00 

NEVADA CO SUPERINT. OF SCHOOLS 01-520011/13/201300013838 75.00 

QUILL CORPORATION 01-430011/13/201300013839 34.39 

Town and Country Resort 01-520011/13/201300013840 354.66 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-953511/13/201300013841 3,158.00 

76-9576 15,247.10 12,089.10 

SUSAN VANDRUFF, OTR 01-581011/13/201300013842 1,552.00 

JOHN COLBERG 01-580511/27/201300013843 101.00 

ESCAPE TECHNOLOGY 01-581011/27/201300013844 675.00 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-510011/27/201300013845 2,528.00 

01-5810 3,200.00 672.00 

OFFICE DEPOT 01-430011/27/201300013846 24.90 

PLACER COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATATTN: 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

01-520011/27/201300013847 3,000.00 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF 

EDUCATION

01-580811/27/201300013848 226.39 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430011/27/201300013849 47.05 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED   SCHOOL 

DISTRICT

01-581011/27/201300013850 250.00 

SINGLETON AUMAN PC 01-580011/27/201300013851 4,500.00 

33,597.60 Total Number of Checks 19 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 19 21,508.50 01

Payroll Clearing 1 12,089.10 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 33,597.60 

.00 

33,597.60 

19 

Page 1 of 1

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Nov 27 2013 

10:55AM

001 - Sierra County Office of Education

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Note to Trustees:
Same policy as 4261.2, approved Nov. 2013, with the

word "Management" applied as relating to
Business Manager and Technology Director positions

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Personal Leaves – Classified Management
AR 4361.2
Personnel

For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner
shall have the same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and protections provided to a
spouse’s child shall also apply to a child of a registered domestic partner.

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable
lesson plans or instructions for a substitute employee.

Bereavement

Employees are entitled to a leave of up to three days, or five days if out-of-state or more than 300
miles one way travel is required, upon the death of any member of the employee's immediate
family. No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary, nor shall such leave be deducted
from any other leave to which the employee is entitled. (Education Code 45194)

Members of the immediate family include the mother, father, grandmother, grandfather or
grandchild of the employee or of the employee's spouse; the employee's spouse, son, son-in-law,
daughter, daughter-in-law, brother or sister; or any relative living in the employee's immediate
household.  (Education Code 45194)

Personal Necessity

Employees may use up to seven days of their accrued sick leave during each contract year for
reasons of personal necessity.  (Education Code 45207)

Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of
absence exceeds the limits set by bereavement leave provisions (Education Code 45207)

2. An accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family (Education Code 45207)

3. An employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant,
party or witness under subpoena or other order (Education Code 45207)

4. Other reasons that the Governing Board may prescribe



2

Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the
Superintendent or designee. However, no such leave shall be granted for purposes of personal
convenience, for the extension of a holiday or vacation, or for matters that can be taken care of
outside of working hours. The Superintendent or designee shall have final discretion as to whether
a request reflects true personal necessity.

Advance permission shall not be required of any employee in cases involving the death of a
member of the employee's immediate family or an accident involving the employee's person or
property or the person or property of a member of his/her immediate family. However, the
employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the need for the leave as soon as
practicable.

After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a
completed and signed district absence form to his/her immediate supervisor.

Legal Duties

Classified Management employees called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay.
An employee may take time off work in order to:  (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the district office
when requesting leave.

Leaves for Crime Victims

An employee may be absent from work in order to attend judicial proceedings related to a crime
when he/she is a victim, immediate family member of a victim, registered domestic partner of a
victim, or child of a registered domestic partner of a victim of the following crimes:  (Labor Code
230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)
2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)
3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, sick leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee. (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give his/her supervisor a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not
feasible. When advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee
shall, within a reasonable time after the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial
proceeding from the court or government agency setting the hearing, the district attorney or



3

prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is advocating on behalf of the
victim.  (Labor Code 230.2)
The supervisor and Superintendent or designee shall keep confidential any records pertaining to
the employee's absence from work.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Leaves for Victims of Domestic Violence or Sexual Assault

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence or sexual assault as defined by law may use
vacation, personal leave or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee
under the applicable terms of employment to attend to the following activities:  (Labor Code 230,
230.1)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee
or his/her child.

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence or sexual assault

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center as a result
of domestic violence or sexual assault

4. Obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence or sexual
assault

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future domestic
violence or sexual assault, including temporary or permanent relocation

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to his/her supervisor, unless
advance notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide,
within a reasonable time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following
documents: (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim of domestic violence or sexual
assault

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of an act of
domestic violence or sexual assault, or other evidence from the court or prosecuting
attorney that the employee has appeared in court

3. Documentation from a medical professional, domestic violence advocate or advocate for
victims of sexual assault, health care provider or counselor that the employee was
undergoing treatment for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting from an act of
domestic violence or sexual assault

The supervisor and Superintendent or designee shall maintain the confidentiality of such an
employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

Personal Leave for a Child's School Activities

Any employee who is a parent/guardian or grandparent having custody of one or more children



4

who are enrolled in grades K-12, or who attend a licensed day care facility, may use up to 40 hours
of personal leave, vacation or compensatory time off each school year in order to participate in
school or day care activities. Such leave shall not exceed eight hours in any month of the year, and
the employee shall give reasonable advance notice of the absence.  (Labor Code 230.8)

In lieu of using vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off, eligible employees may take
unpaid leave for this purpose.

If both parents of a child are employed at the same work site, this leave shall be allowed for the
first parent who applies; simultaneous absence by the second parent may be granted by the
Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Upon request by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall provide documentation from
the school or licensed day care facility that he/she participated in school or licensed day care
facility activities on a specific date and at a particular time.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Employee Organization Activities

Employees may take a leave of absence without loss of compensation, not to exceed four (4) days
in a school year, to serve as an elected officer of a district employee organization or any statewide
or national employee organization with which the local organization is affiliated. The leave shall
include, but is not limited to, absence for purposes of attending periodic, stated, special or regular
meetings of the body of the organization.  (Education Code 45210)

Upon request of an employee organization in the district or its state or national affiliate, a
reasonable number of unelected Classified Management employees shall be granted a leave of
absence without loss of compensation for the purpose of attending organizational activities
authorized by the organization. The employee organization shall provide reasonable notification to
the Superintendent or designee when requesting a leave of absence for employees for this purpose
(Education Code 45210)

Religious Leave

The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three (3) days of leave per year for
religious purposes, provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause
additional district expenditures, the neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship
on the district.

The day(s) of absence shall be deducted from an employee’s vacation leave, District/County leave
day(s), or eligible employees may be granted unpaid leave for religious observances at the
discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member
of the United States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid



5

leave during a period that his/her spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as
defined in Military and Veterans Code 395.10.

Within two business days of receiving official notice that his/her spouse will be on leave from
deployment, the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of his/her
intention to take the leave. The employee shall submit written documentation certifying that
his/her spouse will be on leave from deployment during the time that the leave is requested
(Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

An employee may take unpaid time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a
reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

An employee who is a volunteer firefighter shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence,
not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar year, for the purpose of engaging in fire or
law enforcement training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave
otherwise available to him/her, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California
Civil Air Patrol, provided that the employee has been employed by the district for at least a 90-day
period immediately preceding the leave. Such leaves shall not exceed three days for a single
mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental entity authorizing the mission and is
approved by the Superintendent or designee. (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the district as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the
leave. The Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol
authority to verify the eligibility of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the
employee fails to provide the required certification (Labor Code 1503)

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 Loyalton, California
revised: April 8, 2008
revised: April 10, 2012
revised: December 10, 2013



 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD  
 

MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

YEAR 2014 

 
The meetings are held on the second Tuesday of each month with the exception 

of the June board meeting which will be held on the third Wednesday. 

 
JANUARY 14, 2014 ....................................................... 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 

 

FEBRUARY 11, 2014 .................................................... 130 School Street, Downieville CA 

 

MARCH 11, 2014 .......................................................... 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 

 

APRIL 8, 2014 ................................................................ 130 School Street, Downieville CA 

 

MAY 13, 2014 ................................................................. 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 

 

JUNE 18, 2014 (THIRD WED) ........................................ 130 School Street, Downieville CA 

 

JULY 8, 2014 .................................................................. 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 

 

AUGUST 12, 2014 ......................................................... 130 School Street, Downieville CA 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2014.................................................... 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 

 

OCTOBER 14, 2014 ..................................................... 130 School Street, Downieville CA 

 

NOVEMBER 11, 2014 .................................................. 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 

 

DECEMBER 9, 2014 ..................................................... 130 School Street, Downieville CA 

 
The Sierra County Board of Education meetings will begin with Closed Session, as needed, 

at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm.   
 

The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board regular meetings are 

scheduled to begin immediately following the meeting of the Sierra County Board of 

Education. 

 
 
Adopted:  December 10, 2013 


























































































































	1_SCOE_Agenda_12_10_13.pdf
	2_scoeobjnov13.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	









	3_Singleton_County.pdf
	4_11-12-13 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	5_scoecksnov13.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	



	6_AR4361 21 PN Classified Mgmt REV Dec 2013.pdf
	7_2014 Board Mtg Schedule_Both.pdf
	8_SCOE First Interim.pdf
	9_Policies.pdf

